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The following is a Company Announcement issued by HUDSON MALTA P.L.C., a company
registered under the laws of Malta with company registration number C 83425 (hereinafter
the “Company”), pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Listing Authority.

Quote
Approval and Publication of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

The Company hereby announces that during the meeting of its Board of Directors held yesterday,
Wednesday, 24" June 2020, the Company’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for
the financial year ended 315t December 2019 were approved.

The Board of Directors shall be recommending to the Annual General Meeting of the Company that
no final dividend be declared in respect of the financial year ended 315! December 2019.

The Company notes that, in terms of Listing Rule 5.16.24, the Board of Directors has determined
that profit for the year in the aforesaid Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019 exceeded by more than ten percent (10%) the previously
published forecast financial information, which variance resulted mainly from a change in the
subjective factors involved in the calculation of IFRS16.

The Company further announces that the Board of Directors resolved that the aforesaid Annual
Report and Audited Financial Statements be submitted to the shareholders of the Company for
their approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled to take place on Wednesday,
15™ July 2020 at Hudson House, Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad, St Paul’'s Bay SPB 9060, Malta.

Copies of the Company’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 315t December 2019, as approved, are available for viewing below as an attachment to this
announcement and at the Company’s registered office, and are also available for download from
the following link on the Hudson Group’s website: https://hudson.com.mt/investor-relations/.

It is further announced that, in accordance with Listing Rule 5.61, the Annual Reports and Audited
Financial Statements of each of Time International (Sport) Limited (C 32438) [hereinafter ‘TISL’]
and Hudson International Company Limited (C 48705) [hereinafter ‘HICL’], the joint and several
guarantors of the €12,000,000 4.35% Unsecured Bonds 2026 of a nominal value of €100 per Bond
issued at par by the Company pursuant to and in terms of the prospectus dated 23™ March 2018,
in each case for the periods ended 31%t December 2019, have been approved by virtue of
resolutions in writing signed by all of the directors of each of TISL and HICL, respectively, pursuant
to the articles of association of each of the said companies. Each of the said resolutions were
signed on the 24" June 2020.

Copies of the aforesaid Annual Reports and Audited Financial Statements in respect of each of
TISL and HICL are available for viewing and download from the following link on the Hudson
Group’s website: https://hudson.com.mt/investor-relations/.

Unquote

Dr Luca Vella
Company Secretary
25" June 2020
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Incorporation and Principal activities

Hudson Malta p.l.c (the “Company”) was registered in Malta on the 10 November 2017. The principal
activity of the Company is to purchase or otherwise acquire, under any title whatsoever, to hold and manage
moveable and immovable property or other assets, including but not limited to securities and other financial
interests.

On 20 December 2017, the Company acquired from Hudson Holdings Limited the entire issued share
capital of Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson International Company Limited, which together
comprise the Group as defined in the financial statements. Hudson Malta p.l.c. is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Hudson Holdings Limited.

The Group is involved in the importation and distribution of branded consumer products in Malta, ltaly and
Tunisia and operates a number of retail stores in Malta.

Review of business

During the year under review the Group reported a turnover of €42,815,367 (2018: €42,413,542) and a
gross profit of €13,266,546 (2018: €13,111,423). This marginal increase in revenue was driven by retail
sales in Malta which grew 9% over the comparable period in 2018.

The Group reported a reduced operating profit of €1,515,856 (2018: €2,076,805) as a result of increased
operating and administrative expenses that were incurred as the Group continues to invest in various
resources and systems that are expected to give it improved operating results in the longer term.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of €48,019,430 (2018: €28,166,255) and its current
assets exceeded liabilities by €3,944,396 (2018 €6,790,612). The sharp increase in total assets is mainly
attributed to the introduction of IFRS 16 which gave rise to Right-of-use Assets of €18,590,907. This same
IFRS negatively impacted the net prefitability of the Group by €546,747.

Results and dividends

The income statement is set out on page 21. The directors paid an interim dividend of €250,000 in 2019 but
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend and, propose that the balance of retained earnings
amounting to €5,949,566 (2018: €5,680,119) be carried forward to the next financial year.

Significant risks and uncertainty

The Group's principal risks include financial risks as disclosed in Note 2 to these financial statements,

obsolescence of inventories, loss of market share as a result of other participants entering the market and
negative developments in the economic or political environment.

The impact of COVID-19

Due to the interdependencies between the entities forming the Hudson Malta p.l.c. Group and other entities
within the Hudson Holdings Limited Group, management is addressing the impact of COVID-19 at Hudson
Holding Limited Group (referred to as the ‘Hudson Group’) level. As such the impact of COVID-19 being
addressed herein is from the Hudson Group perspective.
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Directors’ report - continued

The global community has been facing an extraordinary and impactful crisis since the beginning of 2020
with the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic. As a consequence of this pandemic and the various
measures implemented by governments to halt the spread of the pandemic, Hudson Group's business
operations have heen adversely affected. The pandemic has impacted the Group's revenue streams, the
international supply chain and the way the Hudson Group does business in general.

Hudson Group created a COVID-19 Task Force with key people from the organization, with different skill-
sets in order to be able to effectively lead and direct the Group through this pandemic. The main aim was
to immediately assess and address the challenges the pandemic represented to business continuity,
workforce, customers, technology, supply chain and business partners. Priority was given to the short-term
cash management challenges, the immediate reduction of expenditure, including planned capital
expenditure.

Furthermore, management has evaluated the impact COVID-19 is expected to have on Hudson Group
projected results and cashflows for 2020 and such evaluations are being revised on a regular basis to take
into account developments as they arise.

The revised cashflow projections for 2020, taking into account measures being taken and assuming different
scenarios, shows that the Hudson Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. It is the directors intention that Hudson Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries will provide
liquidity support to fellow subsidiaries and sister companies within the Hudson Group as and when
necessary. The directors are of the opinion that, based on the projected cashflows emanating from the
assumed scenarios, the use of the going-concern assumption remains appropriate and there are no material
uncertainties that might cast significant doubt on going concern.

Hudson Group is currently expected to experience a year-on-year decline in turnover and is projecting a
loss for the forthcoming financial year as a result of the impact of COVID-19.

Management has identified key areas where the Group will be most impacted. The below is a high-level
analysis on the impact and the safety measures taken to protect the solvency position of the Group until the
crisis is over.

Retail & e-commerce

Hudson Group operates more than 50 retail stores in Malta, Italy, Spain, Morocco and Algeria which had all
shut their doors by the third week of March in line with respective territory government instructions.

Operations in Malta and Italy resumed in May 2020, whereas Spain, Morocco and Algeria resumed in June
2020. However, the retail trade is not expected to reach pre COVID-19 levels in 2020.

Hudson Group already operated eCommerce prior to Covid-19 through two websites which continued
operating with limited restrictions during the period when retail stores were closed. Following the closure of
the Malta based stores the Group managed to introduce eCommerce in Malta to be able to support
customers with their retail needs. In Africa Hudson Group managed to make products available on 3 party
marketplace websites.
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Directors’ report - continued
Wholesale

Hudson Group is also involved in the wholesale of branded sportswear goods in Malta, ltaly, Spain and a
number of countries in Africa, primarily of NIKE for which the Group has the exclusive distributorship for a
large number of countries in Africa. Similarly to the retail business, the wholesale business was also largely
impacted both locally and internationally due to the closure of client stores. In addition to the disruption in
demand, the Group has been experiencing significant interruption in the supply chain.

Costs

Initiatives to reduce costs were taken across the Hudson Group, in particular:

e Reducing direct and indirect costs ;

e Payroll costs have been reduced through government support, less overtime and reduced working
hours;

« Negotiating downward lease costs in relation to real estate (retail stores, offices, warehouses).

Cash flow

The Group has taken measures to safeguard its cashflow position and ensure it can meet its obligations
despite the downturn in revenues. The current and projected liquidity of the Group has been analysed in
detail and an assessment has been made to cater for any changes in working capital especially given the
high dependency an cash for inventory, property rentals and payroll.

The following initiatives have been taken to protect the short-term cash flow and the knock-on effect on the
longer term cash position of the Group:

¢ Retail investments projected for 2020 have been postponed and any pending orders in relation to these
investments have been cancelled. The Group continued solely with two major infrastructure projects
that it believes are vital for its continued growth post COVID-19 and for which finance was already in
place

e Obtained extended payment terms from key suppliers.

e Cancelled stock orders (where possible) for retail and for wholesale business.

e Availed itself of any government support in the different countries, which includes deferral of tax
payments, wage supplements and support relating to teleworking.

e Obtaining moratoria on repayment of loan facilities with its bankers and temporary increase of its
overdraft facilities to ensure adequate working capital headroom. The Group has alsc applied for
additional bank financing to further strengthen its long-term liquidity position.

The directors consider the outbreak and impact of COVID-19 to be a non-adjusting post-balance sheet
event.

Future developments

As a significant operator in the Maltese retail industry, the Group will ensure that it retains its position through
measured activities and investments in 2020 and beyond.
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Directors’ report - continued

Directors
The directors of the company who held office during the year were:

Alfred Borg

George Amato
Kevin Grech
Christopher Muscat
Victor Spiteri

Kevin Valenzia
Brian Zarb Adami

The company's Articles of Association requires all directors to retire from office at least once every three
years but shall be eligible for re-election.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are required by the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the laws of Malta) to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of each
reporting period and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

e ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adapted by the EU;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances;

e ensuring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business as a going concern.

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the laws
of Malta). They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of Hudson Malta p.l.c. for the period ended 31 December 2019 are included in the
Annual Report 2019, which is published in hard-copy printed form and will be made available on the
company’s website. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report
on the website in view of their responsibility for the controls over, and the security of, the website. Access
to information published on the company’s website is available in other countries and jurisdictions, where
legislation governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from requirements
or practice in Malta.
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Directors’ report - continued

Going concern statement pursuant to Listing Rule 5.62

After making enquires and having taken into consideration the future plans of the Group and the Company
as described above, the directors have reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in the operation of the consolidated finance statements.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the board

F' | //"( /
= \ F
//
Y
red Borg ,Cgriétopher Muscat
Director” | Director

Registered office:
Hudson House,
Burmarrad Road,
Burmarrad,

St. Paul’s Bay, SPB 8060
Malta

24 June 2020
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
Introduction

Hudson Malta p.l.c. (the “Company”) is committed to observing the principles of transparency and
responsible corporate governance. The Board considers compliance and corporate governance principles
to constitute an important means of maintaining the confidence of present and future shareholders,
bondholders, creditors, employees, business partners and the public. Pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules issued by the Listing Authority of the Malta Financial Services Authority, the Company hereby
reports on how it has complied with the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 5.1 of the Listing Rules for the financial period ended 31st December 2019, which
report details the extent to which the Code has been adopted, as well as the effective measures taken by
the Company to ensure compliance with said Code.

The Board recognises that, in virtue of Listing Rule 5.101, the Company is exempt from the requirement to
disclose the information prescribed by Listing Rules 5.97.1 to 5.97.3, 5.97.6 and 5.97.8.

Compliance with the Code
Principles 1 and 4 - The Board of Directors and its Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s strategic planning process, as well as reviewing
and monitoring management’s execution of the corporate and business plans. The Board delegates certain
powers, authorities and discretions to the Audit Committee, as duly constituted in terms of the Listing Rules,
the role and competence of which committee are further described hereunder.

The Board of Directors has a composition that ensures that the Company is led by individuals who have the
necessary skills and diversity of knowledge. It considers strategic issues, key projects and regularly
monitors performance against delivery of the key targets of the business plan.

In fulﬂlllng its mandate, the Board assumes responsibility for:
reviewing the Company's strategy on an on-going hasis, as well as setting the appropriate business
objectives;
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls;

- implementing an appropriate organisational structure for planning, executing, controlling and
monitoring business operations in order to achieve the Company’s objectives;

- identifying and ensuring that significant risks are managed satisfactorily; and

- ensuring that Company policies are being rigorously observed.

Principle 3 — Composition of the Board

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that the Board of directors shall consist
of not less than four (4) and not more than eight (8) directors. Each director has one (1) vote. All directors
are appointed by means of an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
An election of directors takes place every year at the Company’s annual general meeting. All directors are
to retire from office at least once every three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
shall give twenty-one (21) days’ notice in writing, at the least, to the shareholders to submit names for the
election of directors. Notice to the Company proposing a perscn for election as a director, as well as the
latter's acceptance to be nominated as director, shall be given to the Company not less than fourteen (14)
days prior to the date of the meeting scheduled for such election.
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

As at the date of this Statement the members of the Board, are as follows:

Executive directors:

Alfred Borg —Chairman (appointed upon incorporation of the Company, that is, 10" November 2017)
Christopher Muscat (appointed upon incorporation of the Company). With effect from 1st July 2019
Christopher Muscat was appointed CEO, succeeding Alfred Borg who had been appointed CEO upon
incorporation of the Company

George Amato (appointed upon incorporation of the Company)

Kevin Grech (appointed upon incorporation of the Company)

Independent, non-executive directors:

Victor Spiteri (appointed on 21% February 2018)
Kevin Valenzia (appointed on 21%t February 2018)
Brian Zarb Adami (appointed on 215t February 2018)

Dr Luca Vella acts as company secretary (appointed on 9 May 2018, succeeding Dr Albert Grech who had
been appointed as company secretary upon incorporation of the Company).

In compliance with the Listing Rules, the Board considers that the independent, non-executive directors are
independent of management and free from any business, family or other relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment. In assessing the independence of the independent
directors, due notice has been taken of Listing Rule 5.119 of the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board
has a balance of knowledge and experience, as well as a strong non-executive presence, to allow continued
scrutiny of performance, strategy and governance.

Principle 5 — Board Meetings

Meetings of the Board are held as frequently as considered necessary, with a minimum of four (4) meetings
being held annually — the Board met four (4) times during 2019, specifically in January, April, August and
November. The Board members are notified of forthcoming meetings at least seven (7) days before the
said meeting. In addition, the notification includes the issue of an agenda and any supporting documentation
as necessary, in order to ensure that all meetings are of a highly effective nature and all participants are
well informed and able to effectively contribute to Board decisions. Attendance with regards to Board
meetings is recorded in the minutes of the meetings. Minutes of all Board and Audit Committee meetings
are circulated to all members and kept on file by the Company Secretary.

Board meetings are attended by the Finance Director or Head of Finance of Hudson Holdings Limited which
is the parent company of the Company, in order for the Board to have direct access to the financial operation
and results of the Group, which comprises the Company (as parent company), Time International (Sport)
Limited (C 32438), Hudson International Company Limited (C 48705) and their subsidiaries, if any (herein
the “Group”). This is also intended to ensure that the policies and strategies adopted by the Board are
effectively implemented.

The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr Alfred Borg.

All executive directors are employed on a full-time basis with the Hudson Group (comprising Hudson
Holdings Limited (C 37866) as ultimate parent company, the Company, Time International (Sport) Limited,
Hudson International Company Limited and other subsidiary companies; herein the “Hudson Group”) and
have more than 10 years’ work experience at Hudson, whereas all independent, non-executive directors
have relevant experience related to the business in which the Group operates. The remuneration of the
directors is reviewed periodically by the shareholders of the Company.

The newly appointed CEO, Mr Christopher Muscat, who assumed office on the 1 July 2019, promotes an
open dialogue between himself and the directors at regular intervals, not only at Board meetings.
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

In terms of principle 3.1 of the Code, which calls for the appeointment of a senior independent director where
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are carried out by the same person, the composition of
the Board comprises Mr Kevin Valenzia as the indicated senior independent director. Furthermore, the
composition of the Board (which includes 3 independent, non-executive directors) ensures that no individual
has unfettered power of decision.

The Company’s internal control system is structured in such a way as to manage and mitigate risks in the
most appropriate manner.

Principle 6 — Information and Professional Development

The Company firmly believes in the professional development of all the members in the Hudson
organisation. The CEQ, appointed by the Board, is responsible for establishing and implementing schemes
which are aimed to maintain and recruit employees and management personnel. Furthermore, regular
training exercises are held for the Hudson Group’'s employees to keep abreast of current technological and
other relevant subject matter trends and practices. Directors are encouraged to talk directly to any member
of management regarding any questions or concerns the directors may have. Senior management are
invited to attend Board meetings from time to time when and as appropriate.

Principle 8 — Committees
The Board delegates certain powers, authorities and discretions to the Audit Committee.

The Company’s Board has established an Audit Committee for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities for overseeing the financial reporting process, the system of internal controls, the audit
process and the process for monitoring compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board has
formally appointed the following three (3) individuals as the first members of the Audit Committee:

Kevin Valenzia — Chairman & Independent, non-executive director (appointed on 5% March 2018, being the
date on which the Audit Committee was established)

Brian Zarb Adami — Independent, non-executive director (appointed on 5" March 2018)

Victor Spiteri — Independent, non-executive director (appointed on 51" March 2018)

Audit Committee members are appointed for a one (1) year term of office. Such term is automatically
renewed for further periods of one (1) year each unless otherwise determined by the Board of directors of
the Company. The Audit Committee meets at least four (4) times a year, with additional meetings to be
called at the discretion of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, presently Mr Kevin Valenzia. The Audit
Committee met four (4) times during 2019. The Chairperson will also call a meeting of the Audit Committee
if required by any Committee member, by senior management or by the external auditors of the Company.

In addition, the Hudson Group has formally appointed and empowered an executive committee (EXCO) to
manage the Hudson Group's operations. The EXCO is composed of the following individuals: Alfred Borg,
Christopher Muscat, Kevin Grech, George Amato and Martin Gregory. The EXCO is a decision-making
entity set up to implement the Board's strategic business plans and policies consistent with the
organisation’s vision, values and behaviours in order to meet the Hudson Group’s business objectives and
targets. The EXCO advises the Board on decisions and business matters ranging from strategy, policy,
investment and risk.

All directors of the Company, including, therefore, the independent, non-executive directors, have full
access to the Hudson Group’s in-house and external legal and financial advisors who keep said directors
adequately informed of all statutory and regulatory requirements connected to the business of the Company
and the Hudson Group generally on an on-going basis.
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Principles 9 and 10 - Relations with Bond holders and with the Market

The Company is committed to having an open and communicative relationship with its bondholders and
investors. The market is kept updated with all relevant information concerning the Company via the
publication of Company Announcements in terms of the Listing Rules and, furthermore, the Company
regularly publishes such information on its website to ensure continuous relations with the market including
but not limited to the Interim and Annual Financial Statements. The Board believes that bondholders should
have an opportunity to send communications to the Board, which communications should be delivered to
the attention of the company secretary at the registered office of the Company. Principle 11 - Conflicts of
Interest

Directors are expected to always act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and
investors. In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, any actual,
potential or perceived conflict of interest must be immediately declared by a director to the other members
of the Board, who then (also possibly through a referral to the Audit Committee) decide on whether such a
conflict exists. In the event that the Board perceives such interest to be conflicting with the relative director’s
duties, said director shall not vote at a meeting of directors in respect of any contract, arrangement or
proposal in which he has a material interest, whether direct or indirect.

Principle 12 - Corporate Social Responsibility

The Board is mindful of and seeks to adhere to sound principles of corporate social responsibility in its
management practices. This helps the Hudson Group develop strong relationships with its stakeholders
and create long-term value for society and its business. The Hudson Group is committed to play an effective
role in the country’s sustainable development, whilst tangibly proving itself to be a responsible and caring
citizen of the community in which it operates. The Hudson Group continues to support a number of different
local initiatives aimed at improving the quality of life of the local communities it supports.

Remuneration Statement
In terms of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, it is the shareholders of the Company
in the General Meeting who determine the maximum annual aggregate remuneration of the directors. The

non-executive directors received €24,000 in aggregate for services rendered during 2019.

No part of the remuneration paid to the non-executive directors is performance based. None of the directors,
in their capacity as a Director of the Company, is entitled to profit sharing, share options or pension benefits.

Non-compliance with the Code

Other than as stated below, the Company has fully implemented the principles set out in the Code.
Principle 7 - Evaluation of the Board’s performance

At present, the Board does not consider it necessary to appoint a committee to carry out a performance

evaluation of its role as the Board’'s performance is always under the scrutiny of the Company’s
shareholders.
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance - continued

Principle 8 - Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee

The Board believes that the setting up of a nomination committee is currently not suited to the Company as
envisaged by the spirit of the Code as decisions on such matters are taken by the shareholders of its parent

company Hudson Holdings Limited. A remuneration committee for the executive directors exists at Hudson
Holdings level.

Approved by the Board of directors on 24 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

3 /
Lz e
j? e

ian Zarb Adami
Independent, non- executive Director
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion:

e Hudson Malta p.l.c.’s Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the Group and the Parent Company’s financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Finanecial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the EU; and

e The finanecial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese
Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee.
What we have audited
Hudson Malta p.l.c.’s financial statements, set out on pages 19 to 62, comprise:

¢ the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

e the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
» the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and
e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

BagiIe 1o
DUSES JO

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders)
Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these Codes.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services that we have provided to the
parent company and its subsidiaries are in accordance with the applicable law and regulations in Malta
and that we have not provided non-audit services that are prohibited under Article 18A of the
Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281).
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

The non-audit services that we have provided to the group and its subsidiaries, in the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019, are disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

- I s ot e
LMPNAasis oy matter

We draw attention to Note 31 to these financial statements that explains the impact of COVID-19 on the
Group’s operations and financial performance subsequent to the end of the reporting period. This
matter is considered to be of fundamental importance to the understanding of the financial statements
due to its nature and significance. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our audit approach

Overview

Overall group materiality: €428,000, which represents 1% of total revenue.

The audit carried out by the group engagement team covered the parent
company and its two subsidiaries,

Group
scoping

Recoverability of group balances
Key audit
matters

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors
made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits,
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements.

12
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set outin
the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole,

£428,000
1% of total revenue

We chose total revenue as the benchmark because, in our view, it
is the appropriate measure for this type of entity. We chose 1%
which is within the range of materiality thresholds that we
consider acceptable.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our
audit above €42,800 as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting
for qualitative reasons.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued

To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Key audit matter

Recoverability of group balances

As at 31 December 2019, loans and receivables
with related party undertakings amounted to
€6.0m for the Group and €11.6m at Parent
Company level, as disclosed in Note 9. In
addition, as disclosed in Note 11, further
current receivables with related party
undertakings amounted to €4.4m for the
Group.

As explained in accounting policy 1.7.4 and
note 2.1(b), Hudson Malta p.l.c. assessed its
expected credit losses on a forward looking
basis in accordance with IFRS 9. The loss
allowances for these financial assets are based
on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group’s management
uses judgement in making these assumptions,
based on the counterparty’s past history,
existing market conditions, as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

We have given additional attention to this area
because of the nature and magnitude of these
balances.

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

‘We have agreed the terms of the loans to supporting loan
agreements.

We have assessed the financial soundness of the
subsidiaries (being the guarantors of the bond) and the
Hudson Holdings Group, the ultimate parent. In doing
this, we made reference to the latest audited financial
statements, management accounts, and other relevant
information made available to us.

In addition, we understood and evaluated the workings
and assumptions underlying the assessment for the loss
allowances under IFRS 9.

Based on evidence and explanations obtained, we concur
with management’s view with respect to the
recoverability of these balances.

We also understood the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic occurring after the reporting date on the
financial performance and cashflows of the Group and
reviewed related disclosures in the financial statements.

Management’s loss allowance on loans and trade
receivables was determined as at 31 December 20109,
based on experience developed as at that point, without
considering the impact that COVID-19 could have on
credit risk given that COVID-19 is considered to be a
non-adjusting post balance sheet event.

How we tailored our group audit scope

The Group is composed of 3 components: Hudson Malta p.l.c. (the parent company) and its two wholly
owned subsidiaries. We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work on all
components to enable us to provide an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry

in which the Group operates.

The group audit team performed all of this work by applying the overall Group materiality, together
with additional procedures performed on the consolidation. This gave us sufficient appropriate audit
evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Other mformation

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, including the directors’
report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

With respect to the directors’ report, we also considered whether the directors’ report includes the
disclosures required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

e The information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the
directors’ report and other information. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the
Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

audi

t of the financi

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Parent Company’s internal control.

e Hvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, because not all future events or
conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group or the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In particular, it is difficult to evaluate all of the
potential implications that COVID-19 will have on the Group and Parent Company’s trade,
customers and suppliers, and the disruption to their business and the overall economy.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the finanecial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

/

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Listing Rules issued by the Malta Listing Authority require the directors to prepare and include in
their Annual Report a Statement of Compliance providing an explanation of the extent to which they
have adopted the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures that
they have taken to ensure compliance throughout the accounting period with those Principles.

The Listing Rules also require the auditor to include a report on the Statement of Compliance prepared
by the directors.

We read the Statement of Compliance and consider the implications for our report if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements included in the
Annual Report. Our responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this statement is consistent
with any other information included in the Annual Report.

We are not required to, and we do not, consider whether the Board’s statements on internal control
included in the Statement of Compliance cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

In our opinion, the Statement of Compliance set out on pages 6 to 10 has been properly prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules issued by the Malta Listing Authority.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
We also have responsibilities:

¢ under the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) to report to you if, in our opinion:

s Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us.

e The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
e We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

e under the Listing Rules to review the statement made by the directors that the business is a going
concern together with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

‘We were first appointed as auditors of the Company upon incorporation on 10 November 2017 for the
financial period ended 31 December 2018. Our appointment has been renewed annually by shareholder
resolution representing a total period of uninterrupted engagement appointment of 2 years. The Parent
Company became listed on a regulated market on 2 May 2018.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
78, Mill Street

Qormi

Malta

Lucienne Pace Ross
Partner

24 June 2020
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HUDSON MALTA PLC
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Loans and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

©C oo~

10
11

12

As at 31 December

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
1,204,490 1,206,753 - -
3,810,101 2,469,519 - -
18,590,907 - - -
- - 16,400,000 16,400,000
749,524 546,860 - -
6,914,219 6,914,219 11,640,444 11,640,444
31,269,241 11,137,351 28,040,444 28,040,444
3,900,234 4,126,100 - -
9,854,958 10,560,098 2,165 412,602
= 58,398 - -
2,994,997 2,284,308 779,533 304,809
16,750,189 17,028,904 781,698 717,411
48,019,430 28,166,255 28,822,142 28,757,855
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HUDSON MALTA PLC
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

Statements of financial position - continued

As at 31 December

Group Company
Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018
€ .2} € €

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 13 16,450,000 16,450,000 16,450,000 16,450,000
Other reserve (15,994,856) (15,994,856) - -
Retained earnings 5,949,566 5,680,119 93,133 96,675
Total equity 6,404,710 6,135,263 16,543,133 16,546,675
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 11,821,296 11,792,700 11,821,296 11,792,700
Lease liahilities 14 16,987,631 - - -
Total non-current liabilities 28,808,927 11,792,700 11,821,296 11,792,700
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 11,081,736 9,958,021 426,812 404,963
Lease Liabilities 14 1,351,725 - - -
Borrowings 16 276,021 130,296 - -
Current tax liabilities 96,311 149,975 30,901 13,517
Total current liabilities 12,805,793 10,238,292 457,713 418,480
Total liabilities 41,614,720 22,030,992 12,279,009 12,211,180
Total equity and liabilities 48,019,430 28,166,255 28,822,142 28,757,855

The notes on pages 25 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 19 to 62 were authorised for issue by the Board on 24 June 2020 and
were signed on its behalf by:

=

—

/gl&m Borg /Chrfstopher Muscat

irector Director
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HUDSON MALTA PLC
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

Statements of comprehensive income

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating and administrative expenses
Impairment gain / (loss) on financial and
contract assets

Other Income

Operating profit
Income from Investments
Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year/period

The notes on pages 25 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

17
18

18

18
19

21
22

23

Year ended 31 December

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
42,815,367 42,413,542 - -
(29,548,821) (29,302,299) - -
13,266,546 13,111,243 - -
(11,877,009) (11,072,001) (71,865) (47,926)
8,878 (93,642) - (141,475)
117,441 131,205 1,920 -
1,515,856 2,076,805 (69,945) (189,401)
= - 384,615 384 615
592,711 398,732 647,900 467,788
(1,288,357) (605,213) (550,596) (418,195)
820,210 1,870,324 411,974 244 807
(300,763) (702,441) (165,516) (148,132)
519,447 1,167,883 246,458 96,675
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HUDSON MALTA PLC
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

Statements of changes in equity

Group
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
Note € € € €
Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares 50,000 - - 50,000
Total transactions with owners 50,000 - - 50,000
Adjustments relating to reorganisation
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 29) 16,400,000 (15,994,856) 4,512,236 4,917,380
16,400,000 (15,994,856) 4,512,236 4.917,380
Comprehensive income
Profit for the period - - 1,167,883 1,167,883
Total comprehensive income - - 1,167,883 1,167,883
Balance at 31 December 2018 16,450,000 (15,994,856) 5,680,119 6,135,263
Balance 1 January 2019 16,450,000 (15,994,856) 5,680,119 6,135,263
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 519,447 519,447
Transactions with owners
Distribution to owners:
Dividends 25 - - (250,000) (250,000)
Balance at 31 December 2019 16,450,000 (15,994,856) 5,949,566 6,404,710
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Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

Statements of changes in equity - continued

Company

Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares

Total transactions with owners
Comprehensive income

Profit for the period

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2018

Balance 1 January 2019

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Transactions with owners
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2019

Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
Note € € € €
16,450,000 - - 16,450,000
16,450,000 - - 16,450,000
- - 96,675 96,675
- - 96,675 96,675
16,450,000 - 96,675 16,546,675
16,450,000 - 96,675 16,546,675
246,458 246 458
25 (250,000) (250,000)
16,450,000 - 93,133 16,543,133

The notes on pages 25 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of cash flows

Year ended 31 December

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Notes € € € €
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 6,501,072 446 487 362,341 192 516
Interest paid 22 (1,259,761) (583,768) (522,000) (398,750)
Interest received 21 592,711 398,732 647,900 467,788
Income tax paid (557,071) (712,859) (13,517) -
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,276,931 (451,408) 474,724 263,554
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5 (2,335,239) (807,286) - -
Issue of share capital - 50,000 - 50,000
Proceeds from business combination 29 - 2,294,768 - -
Loan and receivables granted 9 - (7,000,000} - (11,780,000)
Receipts from loans and receivables 58,398 - - -
Dividends received - - 250,000 -
Net cash used in investing activities (2,276,841) (5,462,5618) 250,000 (11,730,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from drawdowns
on borrowings - 11,771,255 - 11,771,255
Repayment of borrowings 16 - (3,703,317) -
Principal elements of lease payments (2,185,127) - - -
Dividends paid (250,000) (250,000) -
Net cash generated from financing activities (2,435,127) 8,067,938  (250,000) 11,771,255
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 564,964 2,154,012 474,724 304,809
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year/period 2,154,012 - 304,809 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year/period 12 2,718,976 2,154,012 779,533 304,809

The notes on pages 25 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

Hudson Malta p.l.c. was incorporated on 10 November 2017 in terms of the Companies Act (Cap.
386). On 20 December 2017, the Company entered into a share-for-share exchange transaction
whereby it acquired the entire issued share capital of Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson
International Company Limited from Hudson Holdings Limited. Hudson Holdings Limited is the sole
shareholder of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

The substance of the above transaction was that of a group restructuring by virtue of which Hudson
Malta p.l.c. became the new parent company of both Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson
International Company Limited. Accordingly, the shareholder of Hudson Malta p.l.c. is identical to that
of Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson International Company Limited prior to this
reorganisation, and the restructuring solely interposes an additional holding company as holder of
shares in Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson International Company Limited. This
transaction has been accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as a restructuring as
described in Note 1.2(b).

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU as modified by Article 174 of the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386) and in accordance with the requirements of the said Act.

On the basis of the projections prepared by management following the outbreak of COVID-19, as
described in note 31, the directors believe that there is no material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and accordingly continue
to adopt the going concern assumption in the preparation of the financial statements. Accordingly,
the financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires directors to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the company’s accounting policies (see Note 3 — Critical accounting estimates
and judgements).




HUDSON MALTA PLC
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued
Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019

In 2018, the Group adopted new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting period beginning on 1 January 2018. The adoption of
these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU resulted in changes to the Group’s
accounting policies impacting the financial performance and position. The Group had to change its
accounting policies and make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting IFRS 16, ‘Leases’,
but recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on 1 January 2019. The
impact on the Group following the adoption of this standard is disclosed below. There was no impact
on adoption of this standard by the Company.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019 but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in
the standard.

The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised
in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in Note
1.19.

(a) The Group's leasing activities

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 5 to 10
years but may have extension options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. Contracts may contain
both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in the majority of property leases. These terms are
used to maximise operational flexibility in respect of managing contracts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor. In
respect of the majority of lease arrangements, the extension periods have been included in
determining lease term for the respective arrangement.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store.
For individual stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms with
percentages ranging from 6.5% to 10% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of
reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

(b) Adjustments recognised upon adoption of IFRS 16 in the statement of financial position on 1
January 2019

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as “operating leases” under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.00%.

The associated right-of-use assets for leases were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to those leases
recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease contracts
that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

- right-of-use assets —increase by €17,023,191
- lease liabilities —increase by €16,831,904
- prepayments — decrease by €191,288

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following types of assets:

Measurement of lease liabilities

As at

1 January

2019

€

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 19,827,045

Add: adjustments as a result of different treatment of extensions 1,095,876

Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application (4,091,017)
Less: short-term leases not recognised as a liability

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 16,831,904

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 15,403,236
Non-current lease liabilities 1,428,668

16,831,904

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted
by the standard:

e the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

e reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous;
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

(b) Adjustments recognised upon adoption of IFRS 16 in the statement of financial position on 1
January 2019 - continued

¢ the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2019 as short-term leases; and

s the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

(c) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

The income statement reflects the following amounts relating to leases:

2019

€

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 2,124,864

Interest expense (included in finance cost) 657,075
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities (included

in administrative expenses) 195,195

2,977,134

Operating lease charges to be reflected within profit and loss, utilising the accounting principles of
IAS 17 Leases had IFRS 16 not been adopted, during the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019 would have amounted to €2,235,192. Hence, EBITDA for the year ended 31
December 2019 has been impacted favourably by an amount of €2,235,192 in view of the adoption
of the requirements of IFRS 16.

Therefore, the impact on net profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 had IFRS not
been adopted, would have been favourable as per below:

2019

€

Add: Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets under IFRS 16 2,124,864
Add: Interest expense (included in finance cost) under IFRS 16 657,075
Less: Lease charge under |AS 17 (2,235,192)
546,747

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet adopted

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
by the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the Group'’s
accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2019. The Group has not early adopted these revisions
to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the directors are of the opinion that there are
no requirements that will have a possible significant impact on the Group's financial statements in
the period of initial application.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
cost method of accounting, i.e. at cost less impairment. Cost includes directly attributable costs of
the investment. Provisions are recorded where, in the opinion of the directors, there is an impairment
in value. Where there has been an impairment in the value of an investment, it is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the diminution is identified. The results of subsidiaries are reflected
in the Company’'s separate financial statements only to the extent of dividends receivable. On
disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
is charged or credited to profit or loss.

(b) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations that
fall within the scope of IFRS 3. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
(identifiable net assets) in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired. If this
is less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Business combinations between entities under common control, which do not fall within the scope of
IFRS 3, are accounted for using the predecessor method of accounting. Under the predecessor
method of accounting, assets and liabilities are incorporated at the predecessor carrying values,
which are the carrying values of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity from the consolidated
financial statements of the highest entity that has common control and for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared. When the controlling party does not prepare consolidated financial
statements because it is not a parent company, the financial statements amounts of the acquired
entity are used.

No new goodwill arises in predecessor accounting, and any difference between the consideration
given and the aggregate book value of the assets and liabilities (as of the date of transaction) of the
acquired entity, is include in equity in a separate reserve. The financial statements, incorporate the
acquired entity’s results only from the date on which the business combination between entities under
common control occurred.
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1.2 Consolidation - continued
(b) Business combinations - continued

Under both methods of accounting, upon consolidation, inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to iis fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

1.3 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in euro, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other income/(expense)’.

14 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the company's cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.
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1.4 Intangible assets - continued
(a) Goodwill - continued

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and licences
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences over their
estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future econamic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

%
Improvement to premises 10
Motor vehicles 20
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 20-30

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other operating income’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount (Note 1.6).
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1.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example intangible assets, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting pericd.

1.7 Financial assets
1.7.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss),
and
o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held-for-trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

1.7.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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1.7 Financial assets - continued

1.7.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the peried in
which it arises.
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1.7 Financial assets - continued
1.7.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

1.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to
be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

1.9 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables comprise amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (Note 1.7.4). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against profit or loss.

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value. In the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

1.11 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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1.12 Financial liabilities

The Group recognises a financial liability in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group's financial liabilities, other than derivative
contracts, are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, i.e. which are not at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
initially at fair value, being the fair value of consideration received, net of transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or the issue of the financial liability. These financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. The Group derecognises a financial liability from its
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract or arrangement is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

1.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables comprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Redeemable preference shares are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares
are recognised in the income statement as interest expense.

1.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value of proceeds received, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period. Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

1.156 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

116 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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1.47 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

1.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the company’s activities. Revenue is recognised upon
delivery of products or performance of services, and is stated net of sales tax, returns, rebates and
discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the company's activities as described below.

(a) Sales of goods - wholesale

The Group sells a range of branded consumer products in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when the Group has delivered products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and the wholesaler has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed or the
company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Variability in the transaction price in such arrangements may arise due to a discount given to the
distributor based in the event that a certain number of machines are purchased. In such cases, the
impact of the variability is taken into account when calculating the transaction price and the revenue
recognised per unit delivered reflects such amount.
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1.18 Revenue recognition - continued

(b) Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a number of retail outlets for selling branded consumer products. Sales of goods
are recognised when a group entity sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash
or by credit card.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised for all interest-bearing instruments, using the effective interest method,
unless collectability is in doubt.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

1.19 Leases

The Group Is the lessee

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As explained in Note 1.1 above, the Group has changed its accounting policy for leases where the
Group is the lessee. The impact of the change is described in Note 1.1.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were effectively retained by the lessor were classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

With effect from 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

€ amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.
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1.19 Leases - continued

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store.
For individual stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms with
percentages ranging from 6.5% to 10% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of
reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, where there is no third party financing; and

% makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

+ any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

. any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).
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1.19 Leases - continued
For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

. If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate);

«  Ifany leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate);

+  Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group
becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only
revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

1.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Financial risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The board of directors
provides principles for overall company risk management, as well as policies covering risks referred
to above and specific areas such as investment of excess liquidity. The Group did not make use of
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposure ensuring the current and preceding
financial years.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’'s functional currency. A portion
of the company's purchases and its revenues are denominated in Great Britain Pound (GBP) and
United States Dollar (USD).

The Group is not significantly exposed to foreign exchange risk and a sensitivity analysis for foreign
exchange risk disclosing how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changes in foreign
exchange rates that were reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period is not deemed
necessary.
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2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a) Market risk - continued

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest principally arises from the bond listing (Note 16) and intra-group balances
(Notes 11 and 15), which have fixed interest rates. In this respect, the Group and Company are
potentially exposed to fair value interest rate risk in view of the fixed interest nature of these
instruments, which are however measured at amortized cost.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables and intra-group balances. The credit quality of the
customer is assessed, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.

The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Maximum exposure

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ € € €
As at 31 December
Trade and other receivables (Note 11) 9,541,405 9,076,047 5 410,056
Loans receivable (Note 9) 6,914,619 6,972,617 11,640,444 11,640,444
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) 2,994,997 2,284,308 779,533 304,809

19,451,021 18,333,872 12,419,977 12,355,309

The figures disclosed in the table above in respect of trade and other receivables exclude
prepayments and deferred expenditure.

Third party trade and other receivables (including contract assets)

The Group assesses the credit quality of its third party trade customers, the majority of which are
unrated, taking into account financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. It has
policies in place to ensure that sales of services are affected to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Standard credit terms are in place for individual clients, however, wherever possible, new
corporate customers are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard
payment and service delivery terms and conditions are offered. The creditworthiness analysis for new
customers includes a review through external creditworthiness databases when available. The Group
monitors the performance of its trade and other receivables on a regular basis to identify incurred
collection losses, which are inherent in the Group’s debtors, taking into account historical experience
in collection of accounts receivable.
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2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Credit risk - continued

Third part trade and other receivables (including contract assets) - continued

The Group is exposed to significant concentration of credit risk with respect to two of its main trading
customers amounting to 29.3% (2018: 26.2%) of the total trade receivables. These material
exposures are monitored and reported more frequently and rigorously. These customers trade
frequently with the respective Group undertaking and are deemed by management to have positive
credit standing, usually taking cognisance of the performance history without defaults.

The Group manages credit limits and exposures actively in a practicable manner such that past due
amounts receivable from customers are within controlled parameters.

Impairment of third partly frade and other receivables (including contract assets)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of time before the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
locking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the tenants to settle the
receivables. The Group adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
The Group’s debtors are principally in respect of transactions with costumers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Management does not expect any material losses from non-performance
by these customers. On the basis of this analysis and considering that the Group never experienced
material defaults from its receivables, no adjustments to impairment provisions on trade receivables
were required upon adoption of IFRS 9, as the identified impairment loss is insignificant.

Credit loss allowances include specific provisions against credit impaired individual exposures with
the amount of the provisions being equivalent to the balances attributable to credit impaired
receivables. The individually credit impaired trade receivables mainly relate to independent
customers which are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations mostly due to geopolitical issues,
such as clients situated in Libya, and which are accordingly not meeting repayment obligations. In
this respect, the group has recognised specific impairment provisions during the current financial
year, against credit impaired individual exposures which have demonstrated objective evidence of
being impaired. As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables for the Group amounting to €523,116
(2018: €524,726) were impaired.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.
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2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Credit risk - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was insignificant.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group and Company's other financial assets at amortised cost include loans and other current
balances due from group and related undertakings. The Group and Company monitor intra-group
credit exposures at individual entity level on a regular basis and ensures timely performance of these
assets in the context of its overall liguidity management.

The loss allowances for these financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group’s management uses judgement in making these assumptions, based
on the counterparty’s past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

As at year-end, based on the directors’ assessments of these factors, the equity position of the
respective counterparty, and, where the probability of default is high, the recovery strategies
contemplated by management and the support of shareholders in place, the resulting impairment
charge required for Group and Company was of €509,427 (2018: €516,695) and €139,556 (2018:
€139,556) respectively.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial liabilities, which comprise interest-bearing borrowings (Note 16) and trade and other
payables (Note 15). Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
committed credit lines to ensure the availability of an adequate amount of funding to meet the Group’s
obligations. Further information on additional liquidity measures adopted subsequent to the reporting
date, in view of the COVID-19 pandemic, are explained in note 31.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities are analysed into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity date in the respective notes to the financial statements.

The following table analyses the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
twelve months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(c) Liquidity risk - continued

Carrying | Contractual Within Twoto  More than
Group amount cash flows one year five years  Five years
€ € € € €
31 December 2019
Lease Liabilities 18,339,356 | 25,814,809 2,258,358 2,658,738 20,897,713
Listed bond 11,821,296 | 15,654,000 522 000 2,088,000 13,044,000
Trade and other payables 11,081,736 | 11,081,736 11,081,736 -
Bank borrowings 276,021 276,021 276,021 - -

41,518,409 | 52,826,566 14,138,115 4,746,738 33,941,713

Carrying | Contractual Within Twoto  More than
Group amount cash flows one year five years  Five years
€ € € € €

31 December 2018
Listed bond 11,792,700 | 16,176,000 522,000 2,088,000 13,566,000
Trade and other payables 9,958,021 9,958,021 9,958,021 - -
Bank borrowings 130,926 130,926 130,926 - -

21,881,647 | 26,264,947 10,610,947 2,088,000 13,566,000

Carrying | Contractual Within Twoto  More than
Company Amount cash flows one year five years  Five years
€ € € € €

31 December 2019
Listed bond 11,821,296 15,654,000 522,000 2,088,000 13,044,000
Trade and other payables 426,812 426,812 426,812 - -

12,248,108 | 16,080,812 948,812 2,088,000 13,044,000

Carrying | Contractual Within Twoto  More than
Company Amount cash flows one year five years  Five years
€ € € € €

31 December 2018
Listed bond 11,792,700 | 16,176,000 522,000 2,088,000 13,566,000
Trade and other payables 404,963 404,963 404,963 - -

12,197,663 | 16,580,963 926,963 2,088,000 13,566,000
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Financial risk management - continued

2.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the company may issue new shares or adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders

The Group's equity, as disclosed in the statement of financial position, constitutes its capital. The
Group maintains the level of capital by reference to its financial obligations and commitments arising
from operations and requirements. In view of the nature of the Group’s activities and the extent of
borrowings or debt, the capital level as at the end of the reporting period is deemed adequate by the
directors.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of

preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which would
warrant their description as critical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1.

Intangible assets

Goodwill Trademarks Total

€ € €

Assets taken over on acquisition 1,065,688 141,065 1,206,753

At 31 December 2018 1,065,688 141,065 1,206,753

At 1 January 2019 1,065,688 141,065 1,206,753

Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (2,263) (2,263)
charges

At 31 December 2019 1,065,688 138,802 1,204,490
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Property, plant and equipment

Group

Period ended 31 December 2018
Assets taken over on acquisition
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Depreciation released on disposals

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Depreciation released on disposals

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Furniture,
fittings and
Improvement Motor other
to premises vehicles  equipment Total
€ € € €
570,607 19,346 2,051,077 2,641,030
84,105 - 723,181 807,286
(87,911) - (266,813) (354,724)
(116,919) (11,272) (626,835) (755,026)
38,634 - 92,319 130,953
488,516 8,074 1,972,929 ‘2,469,519
605,435 19,346 2,599,764 3,224,545
(116,919) (11,272) (626,835) (755,026)
488,516 8,074 1,972,929 2,469,519
488,516 8,074 1,972,929 2,469,519
27,546 - 2,307,693 2,335,239
(192,479) - (292,002) (484,481)
(99,392) (4,544) (754,868) (858,804)
150,426 - 198,202 348,628
374,617 3,530 3,431,954 3,810,101
440,502 19,346 4,615,455 5,075,303
(65,885) (15,816) (1,183,501) (1,265,202)
374,617 3,530 3,431,954 3,810,101
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Right-of-use assets - Group

The statement of financial position reflects the following assets relating to leases:

Property Leases Total
€ €
Year ended 31 December 2019
Impact on adoption of IFRS 16 17,023,191 17,023,191
Additions 3,692,580 3,692,580
Amortisation charge (2,124,864) (2,124,864)
Closing net book amount 18,590,907 18,590,907
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
2019
€
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 2,124,864
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 657,080
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities
(included in administrative expenses) 195,195
2,977,139
Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2019 2018
3 €
Period end 31 December
At beginning of the year/period 16,400,000 -
Additions (Note 29) - 16,400,000
At end of year/period 16,400,000 16,400,000
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7. Investment in subsidiaries - continued

The principal subsidiaries at 31 December are shown below:

Subsidiaries Registered office Percentage of shares
directly held by company

2019 2018
Time International (Sport) Limited Hudson House, 100% 100%
Burmarrad Road,
Burmarrad,
St. Paul's Bay,
Malta
Hudson International Company Limited Hudson House, 100% 100%
Burmarrad Road,
Burmarrad,
St. Paul's Bay,
Malta
8. Deferred taxation
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
At beginning of the year/period 546,860 - - 5
Assets taken over on acquisition - 516,480 - -
Credited to the Income Statement 202,664 30,380 - -
At end of year/period 749,524 546,860 - -

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a
principal tax rate of 35%.

The balance at 31 December represents temporary differences on:

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € £

Provision on receivables 331,366 333,803 - -

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 234,614 213,057 - -
Temporary differences on right-of-use

asset 183,544 - - -

749,524 546,860 - -

9. Financial assets at amortised cost
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10.

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Loans receivable from subsidiaries - - 4,780,000 4,780,000
Loans receivable from related
undertakings 7,000,000 7,058,398 7,000,000 7,000,000
Less: Credit loss allowance in lines with
IFRS 9 (85,781) (85,781) (139,556) (139,556)
6,914,619 6,972,617 11,640,444 11,640,444
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Non-current portion 6,914,619 6,914,219 11,640,444 11,640,444
Current portion - 58,398 - -

Loans receivable from subsidiaries and group undertakings bear interest at 5.5% and are repayable
by 2026. These balances are guaranteed by group undertakings.

Inventories
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Goods held for resale 3,900,234 4.126,100 - -

Inventory is stated at net of write-downs of €348,925 (2018: €131,611). Write-downs to net realisable
value have been charged to profit and loss and are included within ‘Cost of sales’ in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Trade receivables 3,156,247 3,840,922 - -
Less: impairment loss (523,116) (524,726) - -
Trade receivables - net 2,633,131 3,316,196 - -
Amounts owed by parent 2,250,596 1,988,212 - 61,875
Amount owed by subsidiaries (net of
provisions) - - - 315,725
Amount owed by related undertakings
(net of provisions) 4,412,786 3,491,999 - 32,456
Other receivables 244,592 280,540 - -
Prepayments and contiract assets 313,853 1,483,151 2,165 2,546
9,854,958 10,560,098 2,165 412,602
Current portion 9,854,958 10,560,098 2,165 412,602

Amounts owed by subsidiaries and group undertakings bear interest at 4.95% per annum (for the
period Jan 2019 — Apr 2019) and 4% per annum (as of May 2019).

Amounts owed by parent, subsidiaries and related undertakings at Group and Company level are
stated at net of provision as per table below:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ -5 € €
Provision on amounts owed by parent 25,692 18,243 - 696
Provision on amounts owed by subsidiaries - - - 739
Provision on amounts owed by related undertakings 398,064 412,671 - 484
423,646 430,914 - 1,919

The remaining amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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12:

13.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafts (Note 16)

Share capital

Authorised, Issued and fully paid

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
2,994,997 2,284,308 779,533 304,809
(276,021) (130,296) - -
2,718,976 2,154,012 779,533 304,809

16,450,000 ordinary 'A' shares of €1.00 each

Group and Company

2019 2018

€ €
16,450,000 16,450,000
16,450,000 16,450,000

The holders of the ‘A’ shares rank ‘pari passu' in all respects. The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

On 20 December 2017, the Company entered into a share-for-share exchange transaction whereby
it acquired the entire issued share capital of Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson
International Company Limited from Hudson Holdings Limited in exchange for 16,400,000 ordinary

‘A’ shares (Note 29).
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14.

15.

Lease liabilities

As at 31 As at

December 1 January

2019 2019

€ €

Non-current 16,987,631 15,403,236
Current 1,351,725 1,428,668

18,339,356 16,831,904

Included in the lease liabilities for properties are amounts of €10,553,341 (1 January 2019:
€10,877,285) which are attributable arrangements with the ultimate parent, of which €9,436,815 (1
January 2019: €9,928,459) are non-current amounts.

Most extension options in property leases have been included in the lease liability.

The total cash outflows for leases in 2019 was €2,842,202. The contractual undiscounted cash flows
attributable to lease liabilities as at 31 December are analysed in Note 2.1(c).

Trade and other payables

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Trade payables 6,417,577 5,996,996 - 213
Amounts owed to parent 110,926 61,625 - -
Amounts owed to related undertakings 2,076,272 1,507,980 - -
Amounts owed to related party 3,853 3,853 - -
Indirect taxation 1,650,237 1,322,971 25,098 -
Other payables 39,425 139,032 - -
Accruals and deferred income 883,446 925,564 401,714 404,750
11,081,736 9,958,021 426,812 404,963

The amounts owed to the parent, related undertakings and related party are unsecured, repayable
on demand and bear interest at 4.95% per annum (for the period Jan 2019 — Apr 2019) and 4% per
annum (as of May 2019)
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16. Borrowings

17.

Non-current
Bond Loan

Current
Bank overdrafts

Total borrowings

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
11,821,296 11,792,700 11,821,296 11,792,700
276,021 130,926 - -
12,097,317 11,923,626 11,821,296 11,792,700

The Bond of €12,000,000 is repayable by 2026, bears interest at 4.35%, payable annually in arrears
on 6 April of each year and is stated at net of unamortised bond issue costs of €178,704 (2018:

207,300).

The Group's bank facilities are disclosed in note 28. Interest on the overdraft facility is charged at

floating interest rates averaging 4.00%.

Revenue

Retail
Wholesale

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
30,469,368 29,681,465 - -
12,345,999 12,732,077 - -
42,815,367 42,413,542 = .

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for goods sold during the year, net of any indirect taxes.
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18.

18.

Expenses by nature

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Purchases of goods for resale 26,781,599 26,916,974 - -
Franchise Fees (Royalties) 1,587,156 1,693,323 - -
Other direct expenses 1,180,066 792,002
Employee henefit expense (Note 20) 4,002,421 3,886,419 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4) 2,263 - - -
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 5) 858,803 755,026 - -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 6) 2,124,864 - - =
Professional fees 126,254 87,097 64,931 41,639
Rent and common charges 1,059,254 3,127,788 - -
Movement in provision for bad debts
for bad debts (Note 11) (1,610) 116,339 - -
Impairment of related party
receivables (Note 11) (7,268) (22,697) - 141,475
Management fees 1,464,928 1,156,086 - -
Advertising 569,446 549,614 384 767
Bank charges 226,109 319,995 547 55
Bond issue costs - 4,776 - 4776
Other expenses 1,442,667 1,185,200 6,003 689
Total cost of sales, operation and
administrative expenses 41,416,952 40,467,942 71,865 189,401
Auditor’s fees
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € .3
Annual statutory audit 36,500 31,500 12,500 12,500
Tax compliance services 3,000 3,350 750 750
39,500 34,850 13,250 13,250
Other Income
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ .S £ €
Other Income 5,467 20,920 1,920 -
Commissions received 111,974 110,285 - -
117,441 131,205 1,920 -
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20.

21.

22,

Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
3,718,047 3,621,234 . .
284,374 265,185 - -
4,002,421 3,886,419 - =

The average number of persons employed by the company during the financial reporting period

was:

Operations
Retail

Finance income

Interest amounts due from subsidiaries
Interest on amounts from ultimate parent
Interest from group companies

Interest on bank balances

Finance costs

Interest payable on bond
Amortisation of bond issue costs
Bank interest and charges

Interest expense due to related parties -

Interest on amounts due to group

companies

Interest charges on lease liabilities

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
30 29 - -
306 271 - -
336 300 s “
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
- - 247,500 178,188
308,947 388,475 262,900 283,402
283,479 - 137,500 -
285 10,257 - 6,198
592,711 398,732 647,900 467,788
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2019
€ € € €
522,000 396,750 522,000 396,750
28,596 21,445 28,596 21,445
65,910 130,533 - -
12,717 - -
14,771 43,768 - -
657,080 - - -
1,288,357 605,213 550,596 418,195
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23. Tax expense

Current tax expense
Deferred tax credit (Note 8)

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
503,427 732,821 165,516 148,132
(202,664) (30,380) - -
300,763 702,441 165,516 148,132

The tax on the Group’s and Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the basic tax rate as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at 35%

Tax effect of:

Income subject to a reduced tax rate of
15%

Unrecognised deferred tax

Unrecognised deferred tax in prior period

Expenses and provision not allowable for

tax purposes

Tax expense

24. Directors’ emoluments

Salaries and other emoluments

Group Company
2019 218 2019 2018
€ € € €
820,210 1,870,324 411,974 244 807
287,074 654,613 144,191 85,682
- (2,170) - (2,170)
- (19,292) - -
(16,315) - - -
30,004 69,290 21,325 64,620
300,763 702,441 165,516 148,132
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
98,744 120,567 32,001 20,000
98,744 120,567 32,001 20,000
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25,

26.

Dividends

Gross dividend
Tax at source

Net dividend

Net dividends per share

Cash generated from operations

Group and Company

Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash generated from operations:

Operating profit/(loss)

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4)

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment (Note 5)

Depreciation right-of-use assets (Note 6)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Movement in provision for bad debts

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

2019 2018
€ €
384,615 -
(134,615) -
250,000 -
0.02 -
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
1,615,856 2,076,805 (69,945) (189,401)
2,263 - - -
858,804 755,026 - -
2,124,864 = § =
135,853 223,771 - -
(8,878) 93,642 2 2
225,866 405,926 - -
522,729  (1,639,931) 410,437 (23,048)
1,123,715  (1,468,752) 21,849 404,963
6,501,072 448 487 362,341 192,516
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27.

28.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments - company as lessee

The Group leases various retail outlets, offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period

at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
No later than 1 year - 1,989,594 - -
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 - 8,693,955 - -
Later than 5 years - 9,143,496 - -
- 19,827,045 - -

With effect from 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for leases, except for
short-term and low-value leases in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 16 (Note 6).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided third parties with guarantees amounting to €3,252,500.
As at the end of the reporting period, the bank provided the Group with a facility covering these

amounts up to a limit of €2,882,000. The unutilised facility as at year end amount to €1,773,107.

The Group also has an invoice financing arrangement with a local financial institution allowing for a
prepaid facility for pre-selected receivable balances up to a maximum of €850,000.

The above facilities are mainly secured by a first general hypothec over the Group companies’ assets
together with guarantees given by the ultimate parent company.
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29.

Business combinations

As described in further detail in Note 1.1, on 20 December 2017 Hudson Malta p.l.c. became the
new parent company of both Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson International Company
Limited, whose assets and liabilities were initially recognised in these financial statements at their
predecessor carrying amounts.

The following table summarises the consideration paid, and the carrying amount of the assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

Time Hudson
International International
(Sport) Ltd Co. Ltd Total
€ € €
Consideration as at 20 December 2017 3,800,000 12,600,000 16,400,000
Share capital issued 16,400,000
Recognised amounts of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment 1,063,841 1,577,189 2,641,030
Intangible assets 1,206,753 - 1,208,753
Other receivables — long term 60,694 876,728 737,422
Deferred tax assets 77,717 438,763 516,480
Inventories 2,824,928 1,707,098 4 532,026
Trade receivables - gross 5,487,075 2,676,031 8,163,106
Other receivables — short term 85,898 - 85,898
Current tax assets 246,682 - 246,682
Cash and cash equivalents 333,825 1,960,943 2,294,768
Borrowings (1,767,201) (1,936,116) (3,703,317)
Trade payables (6,451,380) (4,975,393) (11,426,773)
Current tax liabilities - (376,695) (376,695)
Total net assets acquired 3,168,832 1,748,548 4,917,380
Adjustment to equity 11,482,620

The fair value of trade receivables in the above table is equal to its carrying amount. Trade and other
receivables acquired on the acquisition of Time International (Sport) Limited and Hudson
International Company Limited are stated at net of €123,599 and €865,325 respectively.

The adjustment to equity has been recognised as follows:

Total

L3

Retained earnings (4,512,236)
Acquisition reserves 15,994,856

Total adjustment to equity 11,482,620

The amount recognised in retained earnings represents the aggregated retained earnings of Time
International (Sport) Limited and Hudson International Company Limited as at 20 December 2017.
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30.

Related party transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries have a related party relationship with Hudson Holdings Limited,
the ultimate controlling parent (Note 32) and all related entities ultimately controlled or significantly

influenced by Hudson Holdings Limited.

In the ordinary course of its operations, the company sells goods to companies forming part of the
group for trading purposes. The following transactions were entered into with related parties during

the financial reporting period:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Revenue
Sales - related parties 2,338,010 2,297,626 - -
Other operating income - related parties - 70,285 - “
Interest income - related parties 308,947 388,475 647,900 461,590
Expenses
Cost of sales - related parties 727,181 384,848 - -
Finance costs - related parties - 43,768 - -
Management fees - parent 1,464,928 956,086 - -
Management fees - related parties - 200,000 - -
Year-end balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 11 and 15 to these financial

statements.
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31.

Event subsequent to the end of the reporting period

Due to the interdependencies between the entities forming the Hudson Malta p.l.c. Group and other
entities within the Hudson Holdings Limited Group, management is addressing the impact of COVID-
19 at Hudson Holding Limited Group (referred to as the ‘Hudson Group’) level. As such the impact of
COVID-19 being addressed herein is from the Hudson Group perspective.

The global community has been facing an extraordinary and impactful crisis since the beginning of
2020 with the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic. As a consequence of this pandemic and the
various measures implemented by governments to halt the spread of the pandemic, Hudson Group’s
business operations have been adversely affected. The pandemic has impacted the Group’s revenue
streams, the international supply chain and the way the Hudson Group does business in general.

Hudson Group created a COVID-19 Task Force with key people from the organization, with different
skill-sets in order to be able to effectively lead and direct the Group through this pandemic. The main
aim was to immediately assess and address the challenges the pandemic represented to business
continuity, workforce, customers, technology, supply chain and business partners. Priority was given
to the short-term cash management challenges, the immediate reduction of expenditure, including
planned capital expenditure.

Furthermore, management has evaluated the impact COVID-19 is expected to have on Hudson
Group projected results and cashflows for 2020 and such evaluations are being revised on a regular
basis to take into account developments as they arise.

The revised cashflow projections for 2020, taking into account measures being taken and assuming
different scenarios, shows that the Hudson Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. It is the directors intention that Hudson Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries will provide liquidity support to fellow subsidiaries and sister companies within the
Hudson Group as and when necessary. The directors are of the opinion that, based on the projected
cashflows emanating from the assumed scenarios, the use of the going-concern assumption remains
appropriate and there are no material uncertainties that might cast significant doubt on going concern.

Hudson Group is currently expected to experience a year-on-year decline in turnover and is projecting
a loss for the forthcoming financial year as a result of the impact of COVID-19.

Management has identified key areas where the Group will be most impacted. The below is a high-
level analysis on the impact and the safety measures taken to protect the solvency position of the
Group until the crisis is over.

Retail & e-commerce

Hudson Group operates more than 50 retail stores in Malta, Italy, Spain, Morocco and Algeria which
had all shut their doors by the third week of March in line with respective territory government
instructions.

Operations in Malta and Italy resumed in May 2020, whereas Spain, Morocco and Algeria resumed
in June 2020. However, the retail trade is not expected to reach pre CCVID-19 levels in 2020.

Hudson Group already operated eCommerce prior to Covid-19 through two websites which continued
operating with limited restrictions during the period when retail stores were closed. Following the
closure of the Malta based stores the Group managed to introduce eCommerce in Malta to be able
to support customers with their retail needs. In Africa Hudson Group managed to make products
available on 3 party marketplace websites.
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31.

Event subsequent to the end of the reporting period - continued
Wholesale

Hudson Group is also involved in the wholesale of branded sportswear goods in Malta, Italy, Spain
and a number of countries in Africa, primarily of NIKE for which the Group has the exclusive
distributorship for a large number of countries in Africa. Similarly to the retail business, the wholesale
business was also largely impacted both locally and internationally due to the closure of client stores.
In addition to the disruption in demand, the Group has been experiencing significant interruption in
the supply chain.

Costs

Initiatives to reduce costs were taken across the Hudson Group, in particular:

¢ Reducing direct and indirect costs ;

e Payroll costs have been reduced through government support, less overtime and reduced
working hours;

« Negotiating downward lease costs in relation to real estate (retail stores, offices, warehouses).

Cash flow

The Group has taken measures to safeguard its cashflow position and ensure it can meet its
obligations despite the downturn in revenues. The current and projected liquidity of the Group has
been analysed in detail and an assessment has been made to cater for any changes in working
capital especially given the high dependency on cash for inventory, property rentals and payroll.

The following initiatives have been taken to protect the short-term cash flow and the knock-on effect
on the longer term cash position of the Group:

e Retail investments projected for 2020 have been postponed and any pending orders in relation
to these investments have been cancelled. The Group continued solely with two major
infrastructure projects that it believes are vital for its continued growth post COVID-19 and for
which finance was already in place
Obtained extended payment terms from key suppliers.

Cancelled stock orders (where possible) for retail and for wholesale business.
Availed itself of any government support in the different countries, which includes deferral of tax
payments, wage supplements and support relating to teleworking.

e Obtaining moratoria on repayment of loan facilities with its bankers and temporary increase of
its overdraft facilities to ensure adequate working capital headroom, The Group has also applied
for additional bank financing to further strengthen its long-term liquidity position.

The directors consider the outbreak and impact of COVID-19 to be a non-adjusting post-balance
sheet event.
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32.

Statutory information

Hudson Malta is a limited liability company and is incorporated in Malta.

The ultimate parent company of Hudson Malta p.l.c., is Hudson Holding Limited, a company
registered in Malta with its registered address at Hudson House, Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad. St.

Paul's Bay SPB 9060 Malta

The financial statements of Hudson Malta p.l.c. are included in the consolidated financial statements
prepared by Hudson Holdings Limited.
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